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KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL, BOARD OF GOVERNORS AND 
PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS 

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

Key management personnel are defined as members of the College Leadership Team and were 
represented by the following in 2018/19: 

Mr Matthew Burgess – Principal 

Mr Andrew Bates – Chief Financial Officer 

Ms Karen Morris - Vice-Principal for Curriculum & Quality  

Ms Sue Steed – Vice-Principal for Students (resigned 31 August 2019) 

Ms Carly Rosser-Mayo – Director of Human Resources 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

A full list of Governors is given on pages 15-16 of these financial statements. 

Ms Justine Cosson took up the post of Clerk to the Board of Governors on 6th September 2016 and 
has acted in this role since that date. 

PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS 

Financial statement auditors and reporting accountants:  
Hazlewoods LLP  
Windsor House 
Bayshill Road 
Cheltenham, GL50 3AT 

Internal auditors: 
ICCA Education Training and Skills Limited 
11th Floor, McLaren House 
46 The Priory Queensway 
Birmingham, B4 7LR 

Bankers: 
Barclays Bank 
Leicester, LE87 2BB 

Solicitors: 
Harrison Clark Rickerbys Limited 
Ellenborough House 
Wellington Street 
Cheltenham, GL50 1YD 

 

  



2 
Gloucestershire College Financial Statements 2018-19 

REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY  

NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES 

The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 
2019. 

Legal status 

The Board of Governors was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the 
purpose of conducting Gloucestershire College. The College is an exempt charity for the purpose of 
Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. 

The Corporation was incorporated as Gloucester College of Arts and Technology. On 15 December 
2010, the Secretary of State granted consent to the Corporation to change the College’s name to 
Gloucestershire College.  

Mission 

The College's mission, as approved by its members, is transforming lives, supporting business.  The 
College delivers training pathways that enable individuals to realise their ambitions and fulfill their 
potential whilst meeting the skills needs of the local community. 

Public Benefit 

The College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the 
Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Board of Governors, who are trustees of the 
charity, are disclosed on pages 15-16. 

In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Board of Governors has had due regard 
to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary 
guidance on the advancement of education. The guidance sets out the requirement that all 
organisations wishing to be recognised as charities must demonstrate, explicitly that their aims are for 
the public benefit. 

In delivering its mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits through the 
advancement of education: 

 High-quality teaching 

 Widening participation and tackling social exclusion 

 Excellent employment record for students 

 Strong student support systems 

 Links with employers, industry and commerce 

 Links with Gloucestershire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 

Implementation of strategic plan 

In July 2017 the College approved a new strategic plan for the period 1 August 2017 to 31 July 2021. 
This strategic plan included property and financial plans. The Board of Governors monitors the 
performance of the College against the plan. 

The College’s mission statement, “Transforming Lives, Supporting Business” continues to reflect 
the cornerstone of Gloucestershire College’s work: 

 To give students the best possible life chances through the acquisition of qualifications and 
other wider skills 

 To make a positive contribution to the prosperity of local employers so that there are 
employment opportunities for students 
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Whilst the College has and will continue to develop areas of specialism, given its primary objective is 
to meet the needs of its local community, the College will retain its broad offer. 

STEM 

The College is committed to developing and improving STEM subjects and is continuing its investment 
in these areas. They are disciplines that are increasingly in demand across a wide range of occupations 
and sectors, and as a college, we have a major role to play in ensuring that we are providing an 
opportunity for learners in the key subject areas. The College has partnered with three colleges and 
University of West of England to get Institute of Technology (IoT) status and has been awarded over 
£2 million in funding to create new facilities for its STEM areas at its Gloucester and Cheltenham 
campuses. These plans include the development of computing, cyber and engineering courses at level 
4 and above. The IoT will allow the development of ‘attack and defend’ cyber rooms and electrical 
engineering labs in Cheltenham, which will enable the development of level 6 and 7 provision. 

Sixth Form A-Level Provision 

The College has agreed a collaboration with Dene Magna school in the Forest of Dean to deliver A 
level provision to learners in the Forest area. This is a new venture and is in place for the new academic 
year commencing in September 2019 at our new campus in the Forest of Dean. The College 
anticipates that this provision will grow and is delighted to be working with Dene Magna on this new 
offer, which includes a wide range of traditional A level subject areas. 

Vision 

The vision for GC is that, through the successful delivery of the Strategic Plan: 

 Students leave the College equipped for their future lives with the prospect of securing the best 
possible employment or study options 

 Combined with excellent technical skills, students leave with the wider skills required to 
succeed: good levels of maths and English, confidence, experience of the workplace and a 
‘can do’ attitude 

 Students exceed expected levels of achievement and high levels of “value added” are attained 

 Progression onto higher levels of study and into associated employment is excellent 

 High levels of satisfaction are reported by students, parents and employers 

 GC is recognised as a valued destination of choice and progression pathway 

 A range of provision is offered which enables local businesses to prosper and the College is a 
key partner in the local business community 

 GC remains a viable and sustainable organisation 

 Staff are valued and realise their potential and GC continues to be a rewarding place to work 

GC will be successful in realising its ambitions if: 

 Students’ progress on to higher levels of study or related and valuable employment, having 
exceeded their expected potential 

 There is a year-on-year increase in demand for College courses 

 GC is a viable, sustainable and effective organisation 

 High levels of satisfaction are reported from students, parents, employers and staff 

 External quality assurance ratings are excellent 

GC has set the following strategic objectives for the plan period to meet its vision: 

 To deliver outstanding student outcomes through high quality teaching, learning, assessment 
and student support 

 To equip students with the skills for success beyond College life 

 To deliver an excellent experience to students, parents, employers and external stakeholders 
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 To engage with and meet the needs of the College’s local community 

 To be a viable, sustainable and effective organisation 

The College remains on target to achieve these objectives. 

The College’s specific objectives for 2018/19 and achievement of those objectives are addressed 

below. 

Financial objectives 

The College’s financial objectives are included in a series of performance indicators that have been 
agreed to monitor the successful implementation of the agreed policies. 

Performance indicators 

Objective 1: GC provides students with excellent teaching, learning and assessment, which 
together with outstanding support, delivers high levels of achievement where students meet 
and exceed expectations. 

The College measures its success against: 

 Teaching and learning grade profiles 

 Student success rates 

 Apprenticeship success rates 

 Self-Assessment Report grade profiles 

 Value added results 

 Student feedback 

 Maths and English achievement 

 Progression through levels 

The College continues to improve pass rates in many subjects and is set to build upon this to improve 
further. 

Objective 2: Students develop a wide range of skills that enable them to progress into the best 
possible jobs and courses, and give them the transferable skills to prepare them for their future 
lives. 

The College measures its success against: 

 Destination into related and valuable employment 

 Progression onto higher level courses 

 Take-up of internships and other opportunities 

Objective 3: Students, parents, employers and other stakeholders have an excellent experience 
with the College. 

The College measures its success against: 

 Student feedback 

 Employer feedback 

 Parent feedback 

 Recruitment 

 FE Choices, National Student Survey (NSS) results and other external surveys 

 Customer service issues raised / closed 
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Objective 4: GC engages with and meets the needs of its community. 

The College measures its success against: 

 The number of employers with whom it engages 

 The value and volume of work with key groups 

 Employer feedback 

The College continues to increase its employer base and works closely with agencies to grow its offer 
to meet demand from the Community. 

Objective 5: GC is a viable, sustainable and effective organisation demonstrating increasing 
student recruitment, staff engagement and robust financial health. 

The College measures its success against: 

 Financial ratios 

 Student growth 

 Income from non-government sources 

 Staff satisfaction 

 Estate and staff utilisation measures 

The College will judge its success over the plan period against the following measures: 

 Long success rates 

 Apprenticeship success rates 

 The number of early leavers 

 Financial health 

 Customer satisfaction scores 

 Learner progression towards target grades (value added) 

 Progression to higher levels of study 

 Positive destination into related and valuable employment 

 Teaching, learning, assessment grade profile 

 Volume of work with employers 

 Maths and English achievements 

The College is committed to observing the importance of sector measures and indicators and monitors 
these through the completion of the annual Finance Record and the Financial Plan for the Education 
and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). The College was assessed by the ESFA as having an 
“Outstanding” financial health grading for 2017/18. The expected rating for 2018/19 is to remain as 
“Outstanding”. 

FINANCIAL POSITION 

Financial results 

The Group generated a deficit on continuing operations after depreciation in the year of £7,648,000 
(2017/18: surplus of £4,434,000) after providing for FRS 102 and staff restructuring costs. 

The Group has accumulated reserves of £19,461,000 (2017/18: £27,109,000) and cash balances of 
£4,821,000 (2017/18: £4,842,000). Reserves include £2,587,000 (2017/18: £5,055,000) of short to 
medium term deposits invested with its main bank. The accumulation of reserves and cash in recent 
years was to enable the funding of the building of a new campus in the Royal Forest of Dean. 
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Tangible fixed asset additions during the year amounted to £3,357,000 (2017/18: £9,740,000). This 
was made up of capital work in progress on the new campus in the Forest of Dean of £3,081,000 
(2017/18: £9,510,000) and additional equipment purchased of £276,000 (2017/18: £230,000). 

The College relies significantly on the ESFA for its principal funding sources, largely from recurrent 
grants. In 2018/19 the Education Skills Funding Agency provided 68% (2017/18 68%) of the College’s 
total income. 

The College has four active wholly-owned subsidiary companies: Betaris Training Limited, 
Gloucestershire Facilities Management Limited, New College Developments Limited and 
Gloucestershire Professional Services Limited. The principal activity of Betaris Training Limited is the 
provision of training to the private sector for employer-led qualifications in areas that the College does 
not normally cover, such as security, cleaning and warehousing. The principal activity of 
Gloucestershire Facilities Management Limited is the operation of commercial activities such as 
cleaning and the management of the College’s commercial properties. The main purpose of New 
College Developments Limited is the management of major building and development projects on 
behalf of the College. The principal activity of Gloucestershire Professional Services Limited is the 
supply of support services to Gloucestershire College. Any surpluses generated by these subsidiaries 
are transferred to the College under gift aid provisions.  

In the current year, the surpluses generated for Betaris Training Limited, Gloucestershire Professional 
Services Limited, New College Developments Limited and Gloucestershire Facilities Management 
Limited were £131,270 (2017/18: £166,154), £41,619 (2017/18: £14,633), £7,781 (2017/18: 
£182,604), and £55,970 (2017/18: £48,647), respectively.  

Gloucestershire College previously owned 40% of the shares in the College Brasserie Limited. 
However, the College Brasserie Limited effectively ceased trading on 31 July 2018 and the business 
has been transferred to a company, which was the majority shareholder of the College Brasserie 
Limited. Gloucestershire College has no interest in this company. In consideration for the sale of the 
business the College received the balance of 60% shares held by the third party so that the company 
has now become a 100% subsidiary of Gloucestershire College. The College has petitioned for the 
winding up of the College Brasserie Limited in 2019. 

The College’s net pension liability as reported under FRS102 has increased by £7,149,000 to 
£21,599,000 in the year to 31 July 2019. The College has been making additional contributions to the 
scheme that is having a positive impact on the accumulated deficit going forwards. In the year ended 
31 July 2019 the College made £621,500 in additional contributions. These additional contributions are 
expected to rise to £632,000 in the following year.  

Estates strategy 

The construction of the College’s new campus in the Forest of Dean commenced in May 2017 and 
was completed in September 2018 It was opened for the new academic year 2018/19. The College 
received £6.55 million funding in grants towards the construction costs of the new campus. 

125 Business Park has remained at full capacity during the year. At the Alexandra Warehouse property, 
two tenants have been secured for two of the three available suites on the fifth floor and only one suite 
remains to be let. 

The College has also secured two tenants to rent surplus space at its Cheltenham campus. Income 
from these lettings commenced in 2018/19. 

The College’s has completed the letting of its Launchpad building and rental income from this property 
commenced in 2018/19. 
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Treasury policies and objectives 

Treasury management is the management of the College’s cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities and the 
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. 

The College has a separate treasury management policy in place.  

All borrowing requires the authorisation of the Board of Governors and shall comply with the 
requirements of the Financial Memorandum of the ESFA. 

Cash flows 

The College recorded a net operating cash inflow from operating activities of £1,275,000 in 2018/19 
(2017/18 inflow of £1,699,000) and, after investing and financing activities, there was a net decrease 
in cash and cash equivalents of £21,000 (2017/18 decrease of £3,206,000). 

Debt 

The College has in place a 20 year loan facility for £3,143,000 with Barclays Bank PLC which was 
agreed in July 2009 following the purchase of the 125 Business Park in Gloucester. On 28 October 
2009 the College forward-hedged £1,000,000 at a rate of 6.96% starting in July 2011. On 28 July 2011 
the College drew down the full value of the loan with the unhedged element of the loan of £2,143,000 
charged a variable rate of interest. 

The College has negotiated an additional loan facility of £2.2 million with Barclays Bank plc. This facility 
has been confirmed by the bank but no drawdown has taken place to date. 

FRS102 – pension liability 

During the year the College has seen its FRS102 pension liability increase from £14,450,000 at 1 
August 2018 to £21,599,000 at 31 July 2019. The charges made to the income and expenditure 
account in respect of service and interest costs were £2,641,000 and £418,000 respectively.  

Reserves policy 

Gloucestershire College is significantly dependent on ESFA funding to sustain its activities, as other 
streams of income alone would not allow the College to continue operating.   

This means that if there was to be a significant fall in these funding sources it is likely that the College 
would have to restructure or close down.   

To avoid closure if funding was to fall substantially, the Board of Governors has agreed to keep a 
certain level of financial reserves to ensure that main operations can continue for a period of at least 
six months. The main concerns of the Board of Governors are to ensure:  

 that staff can continue working,  

 that there is time to secure new funding  

 that students are supported to move on to other services   

 Sufficient funding to meet any pension deficit 

 it has sufficient resources to meet its liabilities 

In addition, the College has kept additional reserves to part-fund the building of the new campus at the 
Northern Quarter, Forest of Dean, at a final building cost of £13,848,000.  
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CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

Student numbers 

The College is funded according to the level of activity that it generates each year. In 2018/19 the 
College delivered activity on funding body main allocation funding of £21,009,000 (2017/18: 
£20,698,000) enrolling 6,848 learner-responsive funded students comprising 2,319 16-18 students and 
4,529 19+ students. In addition, 1,746 learners studied employer-responsive apprenticeships and 
trailblazers during the year. 

Student achievements 

The College’s achievements for the year as against 2017/18 and 2016/17: 

 Pass Rates (%) 
  2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 

 Level 1 93 93 90 

 Level 2 92 91 87 

 Level 3 95 93 93 

Curriculum developments 

The College curriculum continues to develop and the programmes of study for 16-19 year olds are now 
embedded. The College has launched new full time programmes in patisserie (Level 2), barbering 
(Level 2) and make up (Level 3) to meet the interests of learners and to support the needs of local 
employers. There remains a major focus on the up-skilling of students in the areas of maths and 
English, with a target for students to have achieved at least a Grade 4 GCSE in both of these subjects 
whilst enrolled at the College.  

The College continues to focus on developing wider skills for students to meet the needs of employers. 
This ensures we are preparing young people with the necessary transferable skills for their future. 
There have been major developments in the College’s work around creating effective work experience 
opportunities and supported internships, along with engagement in social action projects and 
volunteering. These will be further developed through the new student development sessions with level 
1 and 2 learners. The College is further developing opportunities for learners to participate in external 
work placements through timetabled block weeks for level 2 and 3 learners and the launch of the ‘100 
hours’ programme encouraging learners to aim for a minimum of 100 hours work experience and 
continued professional development each year. The College continues to be part of the capacity 
development funding pilot to extend the work placement hours for a range of learners.  

The College is committed to improve learning facilities available for students in science and technology 
areas and has invested over £2 million in developing its engineering centre at Gloucester and 
construction and technology offer across all three campuses. In addition, there has been investment 
in a new photography studio in Cheltenham and in creating a higher education (HE) and professional 
zone, including a common room, at the Cheltenham campus. There are modern libraries and art 
studios across the three campuses. A new dedicated space for HE and professional students in 
Gloucester provides a common room area, specialist resources such as journals for different subject 
areas and a quiet study space, as well as classrooms specifically for HE students.  

Courses have been designed to ensure students are able to move securely into the labour market. A 
major part of the GC employability agenda is its work with apprentices who gain qualifications while 
gaining experience and earning money. 83% of apprentices say their career prospects improved when 
they completed their apprenticeship.   
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The above includes higher apprenticeships, notably in Engineering where students can progress to 
higher programmes in Electrical/Electronic and Mechanical Engineering.   

Other courses and activities to prepare students for university include: 

 Access courses for adults 

 HE festival to promote higher education courses to all level 3 learners 

 Close liaison with a range of universities including BCU, UWE, Hereford College of Arts, 
University of Worcester and University of Gloucestershire 

 Acting as partner and recipient in the GAPS/GROWS HE project with the objective to work with 
learners from traditionally under-represented groups to encourage progression to higher 
education. 

Increasingly, adult learners are seeking learning opportunities that fit with their work and life.  To 
accommodate this need, the College offers blended programmes that allow flexible learning and less 
time away from the workplace.  Examples include Leadership and Management related courses and, 
most recently, Accounting Technician (AAT) programmes. 

The College works with over 1,000 of Gloucestershire’s top employers and offers apprenticeships from 
Level 2 (Intermediate) to Level 6 (Bachelor degree level).  We have high success rates and offer across 
17 industries; accounting, business administration, construction, customer services, dental nursing, 
early years, engineering, hairdressing, health and social care, IT, management, marketing, motor 
vehicle, professional cookery and hospitality, retail, sales and telesales and team leading. Higher 
Apprenticeships range from Level 4 to Level 6 and give students debt-free and continuing work 
experience whilst studying at degree level. We have launched, and continue to develop, a range of IT 
and Cyber apprenticeships and are currently developing teacher-training apprenticeships. 

Payment performance 

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, which came into force on 1 November 
1998, requires colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers 
within 30 days of either the provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was 
received. The target set by the Treasury for payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95 per cent.  

During the accounting period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2019, the College paid 97.29% (2017/18 
95.87%) of its invoices within 30 days. The College incurred no interest charges in respect of late 
payment for this period. 

Post balance sheet events 

There have been no material post balance sheet events in 2019.  

Future prospects  

The College has significantly increased contributions by introducing a number of efficiency schemes 
across the College’s sites. The College wishes to reduce its dependency on the funding bodies and 
has sought other income streams, particularly in the areas where the College currently performs well 
such as full cost work and other commercial income sources. 

The College has a strong balance sheet and has in place good financial controls. Its early response to 
government funding cuts has lessened the impact of these cuts to produce an operating surplus. 

Resources 

The College has significant resources in place that it deploys in pursuit of its strategic objectives.   

Tangible resources include the three main College sites. The new £13.8 million campus in the Royal 
Forest of Dean was completed in early September 2018. This new campus is expected to attract 
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additional students and meets the high standard of facilities that the College offers at its other 
campuses in Gloucester and Cheltenham. 

Financial 

The Group has £19.5 million of net assets (2017/18: £27.1 million), net of £21.6 million pension liability 
(2017/18: £14.4 million), and long-term debt of £1.7 million (2017/18: £1.9 million).  

People 

The Group employs 707 people (2017/18: 736) (expressed as full time equivalents), of whom 485 
(2017/18: 511) are teaching staff. 

Reputation 

The College has a good reputation locally and nationally which has been evidenced by a “good” Ofsted 
inspection, good academic results, and excellent facilities. 

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The College has well developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management 

in all that it does. Risk management processes are designed to protect its assets, reputation and 

financial stability. The Board of Governors has overall responsibility for risk management and its 

approach to managing risks and internal controls is explained in the Statement on Corporate 

Governance. 

The College has a comprehensive risk management policy which is reviewed and approved by the 

Board of Governors. It has well established procedures for the review and updating of the College’s 

risk register. 

Based on the Strategic Plan, the Executive Team and the Board of Governors undertake a 
comprehensive review of the risks to which the College is exposed. Key risks are linked to both the 
corporate objectives of the Strategic Plan and the College’s KPIs. They cover such areas as 
recruitment and retention of students and staff; the quality of the estate; business continuity and 
security of information. The College and the Board identify systems and procedures, including specific 
preventable actions to mitigate any potential impact on the College. Internal controls are implemented 
and their effectiveness reviewed as well as progress against risk mitigation actions. Any risks that may 
arise as a result of a new area of work being undertaken by the College are identified and monitored 
throughout the year. 

A risk register is maintained by the College and is reviewed at least termly by the Audit Committee. 
The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact 
on the College and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the impact. Risks are prioritised 
using a consistent scoring system.  

There is an annual review of the College’s risk management policy, procedures and risk register by 
the Board of Governors.  

Risk management is fully embedded within the organisation. Staff at all levels are trained and 
encouraged to consider the risks and opportunities in their area of responsibility. Risk management is 
supported through training programmes to raise awareness of risk throughout the College. 

The College has carried out further work during the year to develop and embed the system of internal 
control, including financial, operational and risk management that is designed to protect the College’s 
assets and reputation.  
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Outlined below is a description of the key risk factors that may affect the College.  Not all the factors 
are within the College’s control. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the 
College. 

1. Government funding 

The College continues to have considerable reliance on government funding through the further and 
higher education sector funding bodies In 2018/19, 76% of the College’s revenue was ultimately 
publicly funded and this level of reliance is not expected to change materially. There can be no 
assurance that government policy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue 
at the same levels or on the same terms.  

The College is aware of several issues that may affect future funding, including apprenticeship reforms 
and devolution of the adult education budget. 

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways: 

 Funding streams are derived through a number of separate direct and indirect contractual 
arrangements 

 By ensuring the College is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training 

 Considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key relationships 
with the various funding bodies 

 By ensuring the College is focused on those priority sectors, which will continue to benefit from 
public funding. 

 Regular dialogue with funding bodies 

2. Tuition fee policy 

Ministers have confirmed that the fee assumptions remain broadly unchanged.  In line with the majority 
of other colleges, Gloucestershire College will seek to collect tuition fees in accordance with the fee 
assumptions.   The risk for the College is that demand falls off as fees increase.  This will have an 
impact on the growth strategy of the College. 

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways: 

 By ensuring the College is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training, thus 
ensuring value for money for students 

 Close monitoring of the demand for courses as prices change 

 Robust and transparent fee policy 

3. Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities 

The financial statements report the share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit on the 
College’s balance sheet in line with the requirements of FRS 102. Furthermore, in 2018/19 the College 
made additional contributions to the scheme of £621,500. Planned payments for 2019/20 are expected 
to be £632,000. The College has raised a first legal charge on its Cheltenham campus in favour of the 
Gloucestershire Pension Fund as security against the pension deficit. 

4. Maintain appropriate estate 

The College has significantly reduced the size of its estate over the last four years. The properties that 
were formerly leased have been vacated and the leases surrendered. New facilities were created on 
the three main campuses to accommodate those training areas originally situated on leased premises. 
In addition, the College has built a new in the Royal Forest of Dean, which became operational for the 
new academic year commencing in September 2018. This replaces the old premises located on the 
Five Acres site. The new building consolidates the College’s estate by having three high standard 
facilities located at the Forest of Dean, Gloucester and Cheltenham. 
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5. Failure to maintain the financial viability of the College 

The College’s financial health grade for 2017/18 was classified as “Outstanding”.  

The expected grade for 2018/19 is to maintain at “Outstanding”.   

The risk of failure to maintain viability and continue as a going concern is mitigated in a number of 
ways: 

 Rigorous budget setting procedures and sensitivity analysis 

 Regular in year budget monitoring  

 Robust estate management 

 Robust financial controls 

 Exploring ongoing procurement efficiencies 

Stakeholder relationships 

In line with other colleges, Gloucestershire College has many stakeholders: 

 Students 

 Education sector funding bodies 

 Staff 

 Local employers (with specific links) 

 Local authorities 

 Government offices/regional development agencies/LEPs 

 The local community 

 Other FE institutions 

 Trade unions 

 Professional bodies 

The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in communication with its 
stakeholders through regular meetings at a variety of levels and through the College website. 

Equal opportunities and employment of disabled persons  

The College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here. We 
respect and value positively differences in race, gender, sexual orientation, disability, religion or belief 
and age.  

We strive vigorously to remove conditions that place people at a disadvantage and we will actively 
combat bigotry. This policy is resourced, implemented and monitored on a planned basis. 

The College’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy is published on the College website. 

The College gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons, 
bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals concerned.  Where an existing employee becomes 
disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with the College continues.  The College’s 
policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities for promotion that are, as far as is 
possible, identical to those for other employees. 

Disability statement 

The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010 and because the College 
receives public funds, the Public Sector Equality Duty. 

The College disability statement reflects its commitment towards creating an environment where a 
person with a disability or who develops a disability (student or staff member) will not be treated less 
favourably for a reason relating to his/her disability without justifiable cause. 

Disabled people (whether they are students, staff, our customers or visitors to the College) should be 
able to participate fully in the life of the College. To enable this, the College will endeavour to remove 
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barriers and change attitudes that prevent disabled people from gaining access to education, 
employment and services provided by the College and its respective partners. 

Gloucestershire College seeks to promote disability equality at all levels. 

Gloucestershire College will work with disabled people, organisations for disabled people and disability 
access groups to achieve equality of opportunity. 

Trade union facility time  

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College to 

publish information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College 

Numbers of employees who were relevant period FTE employee number 

4 2.01 

 

Percentage of time Number of employees 

0% 0 

1-50% 4 

51-99% 0 

100% 0 

 

Total cost of facility time £11,971 

Total pay bill £16,510,616 

Percentage of total bill spent on facility time 0.07% 
 

 

 

Disclosure of information to auditors 

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each 
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and each 
member has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the College’s auditors are aware of that information. 

Professional advisers 

External Auditors Hazlewoods LLP, Cheltenham 

Internal Auditors ICCA Education Training and Skills Limited, Birmingham 

Principal Bankers Barclays Bank Plc, Cheltenham  

Solicitors  Harrison Clark Rickerbys Limited, Cheltenham 

Tax Advisors  Grant Thornton UK LLP, Bristol 

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on 12 December 2019 and signed on 
its behalf by: 

 

P Burton  

Chair of Governors 

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 

percentage of total paid facility time 

0% 
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The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College 
to obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period 
from 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial 
statements 

The College endeavours to conduct its business: 

 in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership); 

 in full accordance with the Code of Good Governance for English Colleges as amended by the 
Senior Post Holder Remuneration Code (adopted May 2016 and November 2018) and having 
due regard to the UK Corporate Governance Code and the Charity Governance Code insofar 
as they are applicable to the further education sector (the Codes). 

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance.  This 
summary describes the manner in which the College has applied the principles set out in the Codes. 
Its purpose is to help the reader of the accounts understand how the principles have been applied. 

In the opinion of the Board of Governors, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code in 
so far as they apply to the Further Education Sector and it has complied throughout the year ended 31 
July 2019. The Board of Governors recognise that, as a body entrusted with both public and private 
funds, it has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times. In 
carrying out its responsibilities, it takes full account of the Code, which it formally adopted in May 2016, 
and the Charity Governance Code July 2017. 

Based on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Principal, the Board of Governors is of the opinion 
that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and 
control, and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficient use of resources, the 
solvency of the institution and the body and the safeguarding of their assets”. 
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The Members who served on the Board of Governors during the period and up to the date of 
signature of this report were as follows: 

Name 
Date of 

Appointment 
Term of 
Office 

Status of 
Appointment 

Committee Served 

Board 
Attendance 

for academic 
year  

2018/19 

Board & 
Committee 
Attendance 

for academic 
year 2018/19 

Mr Matthew 
Burgess  

1 September 
2013 

Principal 

Ex officio 

Principal 

Ex officio 

Ex officio all Committees 
except Audit and Special 
Committee 

100% 100% 

Ms Anne 
Williams 
(End of term 
of office 28 
September  
2018) 

September 
1994 
Re-appointed 
2006, 2010 & 
2014 

4 years External Chair of Business & 
Resources; 
Chair of Senior Staff 
Employment. 

- 100% 

Mr Stephen 
Marston 

(End of term 
of office 31 
August 
2019) 

1 September 
2011 

Reappointed  
September 
2015 

4 years External - 60% 60% 

Ms 
Pollyanne 

Schreuder 

(End of term 
of office  1 
November  
2019) 

1 November 
2011 

Re-appointed 
November 
2015 

4 years External Business & Resources to 
24/05/2019. 

 

40% 73% 

Ms Patricia 

Burton  

(Chair from 
1 April 2017) 

21 March 2013 

Reappointed 
March 2017 

4 years External  Chair of Curriculum & Quality;  

Audit Committee (to 31 March 
2017);  

From 11 May 2017 appointed 
to Business & Resources, Vice 
Chair of Senior Staff 
Employment Committee, and 
Vice Chair of Governance 
Review & Search. Careers Link 
Governor.  

100% 90% 

Mr Keith  
Rog 

(Appointed 
Vice-Chair 
20 March 
2016) 

17 July 2014 

Re-appointed 
March 2016 

4 years External  Business & Resources to 
24/05/2019.;  

Chair of Governance Review & 
Search; 

Senior Staff Employment. 

40% 75% 

Mr Philip 
Head 

1 September 
2014 

4 years External Business & Resources (to 
22/3/2018); 

Estates Working Group 

Audit Committee (from 
22/3/2018) 

Health and Safety Link 
Governor  

100% 100% 

Mr Peter 
Carr 

25 May 2016 4 years External  - 
20% 20% 

Mr Clive 
Baldwin 
(resigned 3 
October 
2018) 

13 October 
2016 

4 years  External  Audit (Chair from 4 October 
2017). 

- 100% 
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Name 
Date of 

Appointment 
Term of 
Office 

Status of 
Appointment 

Committee Served 

Board 
Attendance 

for academic 
year  

2018/19 

Board & 
Committee 
Attendance 

for academic 
year 2018/19 

Ms Julie 
Haines (end 
of term 14 
December 
2018) 

15 December 
2016 

2 years Staff Governor Curriculum & Quality.  50% 75% 

Mr Mike 
Lawson 

(end of term 
08 March 
2019) 

9 March 2017 2 years Staff  

Governor 

Curriculum & Quality.  67% 50% 

Ms Helen 
Ridler 

9 March 2017 4 years External  Business & Resources to 
24/05/2019. 

Audit Committee from 
01/09/2019. 

100% 100% 

Ms Mary 
James 

11 May 2017 4 years  External Curriculum & Quality (Chair 
from 14 December 2017);  
Safeguarding Link Governor 

80% 90% 

Mr Anthony 
Dover 

18 October 
2018 

4 years External  Audit Committee 100% 100% 

Ms Evie 
Bowstead 

(End of term 
of office 31 
August 
2019) 

18 October 
2018 

<1 year Student 
Governor 

Curriculum & Quality  60% 40% 

Mr Jamie 
Ingram 

(End of term 
of office 31 
August 
2019) 

18 October 
2018 

<1 year Student 
Governor 

Curriculum & Quality  0% 20% 

Mr William 
Abbott 

19 October 
2018 

4 years External  Business & Resources 
Committee to 24/05/2019 

75% 88% 

Mr David 
Kettlety 

(End of term 
of office 28 
June 2019) 

15 December 
2018 

2 years Staff  

Governor 

Curriculum & Quality.  100% 100% 

Ms Amy 
Pugh 

9 March 2019 2 years Staff  

Governor 

Curriculum & Quality.  50% 75% 

Mr Drew 
Humphreys 

29 June 2019 2 years Staff Governor Curriculum & Quality - - 

Dr Heather 
Moyes 

10 October 
2019 

1 year External Curriculum & Quality - - 

Mr Eli 
Heathfield 

7 November 
2019 

1 year Student 
Governor  

Curriculum & Quality - - 

 

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on 12 December 2019 and signed on 
its behalf by: 

 

 

 

P Burton 

Chair of Governors 

12 December 2019 
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It is the Board of Governors’ responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of 
strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct. 

The Board of Governors is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial 
performance of the College together with other information such as performance against funding 
targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality matters, personnel related matters, health and safety, 
environmental issues and risk management.  The Board of Governors met five times in the year ended 
31 July 2019. 

The Board of Governors conducts its business through a number of committees and working groups.  
Each committee has terms of reference, which have been approved by the Board of Governors.  During 
the year ended 31 July 2019, the Board’s committees comprised Business and Resources Committee, 
Curriculum and Quality Committee, Audit Committee, Senior Staff Employment Committee and 
Governance Review Committee. The Board also included an Estates Working Group which met for 
the last time in November 2018 following completion of the new Forest of Dean campus.  Other 
committees and working groups are established as and when required. 

Minutes of meetings, except those deemed confidential by the Board of Governors, are available on-
line on the College’s website (www.gloscol.ac.uk) or from the Clerk to the Board of Governors at: 

Gloucestershire College 
Princess Elizabeth Way 
Cheltenham 
Gloucestershire 
GL51 7SJ 

All Governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the 
College’s expense. No such advice was requested or sought in the year to 31 July 2019. Governors 
also have access to the Clerk to the Board of Governors, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring 
that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with.  The appointment, evaluation and 
removal of the Clerk are matters for the Board of Governors as a whole. 

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Governors in a timely manner, prior to Board 
meetings.  Briefings are also provided on a regular basis. 

The Board of Governors has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or 
group dominates its decision-making process.  The Board of Governors considers that each of its non-
executive members is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship 
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. The Clerk to the Board 
of Governors maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the Governors. The register is 
available for inspection at the above address. 

There is a clear division of responsibility between the non-executive Board of Governors and the 
Principal and the Executive Team. The roles of the Chair and Principal are separate. 

Appointments to the Board of Governors 

Any new appointments to the Board of Governors are a matter for the consideration of the Board of 
Governors as a whole.  The Board of Governors has a Governance Review and Search Committee, 
which, during 2018/19, comprised at least three members of the Board, and is responsible for the 
selection and nomination of any new external member for the Board’s consideration, and for 
succession planning.  The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is 
provided as required. 

http://www.gloscol.ac.uk/
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The Board of Governors is committed to promoting diversity on the Board. As at 31 July 2019 the 
gender balance was 40% female and 60% male. No governors had a disability. 

Members of the Board of Governors are appointed for a term of office not exceeding four years. The 
Board has adopted the recommendation in the Code of Good Governance for English College that no 
more than two terms of office should be served by members other than in exceptional circumstances. 

Board of Governors performance 

The Board of Governors seeks to continually improve all aspects of the College’s delivery to learners, 
employers, staff and other stakeholders.  Opportunities for improvement are routinely explored and 
discussed within Board and Committee agendas and at regular Strategic Planning meetings. 

The governors are appointed to the Board from a wide range of backgrounds and bring a wealth of 
different skills and experiences to the governance of the College. 

In 2018/19, the Board of Governors conducted a thorough review of the College’s governance structure 
and its effectiveness and self-assessed their performance as Good, consistent with the findings of the 
Ofsted inspection carried out in October 2016. 

Senior Staff Employment Committee (SSEC) 

The role of the SSEC is to review the performance of and to determine the pay and conditions of the 
Principal/Chief Executive, designated Senior Post Holders and the Clerk. 

The SSEC comprises three external members of the Board of Governors (the Chair of the Board, the 
Vice-Chair of the Board (who chairs the Committee) and the Chair of the Audit Committee) plus an 
independent co-opted member with relevant expertise. The Principal attends meetings of the 
Committee by invitation to advise the Committee on the performance of other Senior Post Holders line 
managed by the Principal but is not a member of the Committee.  During the year ended 31 July 2019, 
the SSEC met three times. 

The Board adopted the Colleges’ Senior Post Holder Remuneration Code (the Code) in April 2019 and 
assesses remuneration in line with its principles.  

The post holders within remit of the SSEC are as follows:  

 Principal/Chief Executive 

 Chief Financial Officer 

 Vice Principal Curriculum and Quality 

 Director of Human Resources 

 Clerk to the Board of Governors 

The Board’s strategic and remuneration objectives and the principles for determining remuneration for 
post holders within remit of the SSEC are set out in the Senior Post Holder Remuneration and Appraisal 
Policy. The Policy also includes the policy on income derived from external activities. In considering 
remuneration within the principles set out in the Code, the SSEC takes into account relevant 
benchmarking data to support the different indicators including the AoC Senior Pay Survey. 

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2019 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. 

Audit Committee 

During the year ending 31 July 2019 the Audit Committee comprised three members, including 
appropriately skilled individuals. The Principal, the Chair of the Board and staff governors are excluded 
from membership.  The Committee operates in accordance with the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice 
and written terms of reference approved by the Board of Governors. Its purpose is to advise the 
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corporation on the adequacy and effectiveness of the corporation’s assurance framework. In addition, 
the Audit Committee advises and supports the corporation in explaining, in its annual accounts, the 
measures taken to ensure it has fulfilled its statutory and regulatory responsibilities. 

The Audit Committee meets three times a year as a minimum and provides a forum for reporting by 
the College’s internal and financial statements auditors, both of whom have access to the committee 
for independent discussion, without the presence of College management.  The Committee also 
receives and considers reports from the ESFA and any other funding bodies as they affect the 
College’s business. 

The College’s internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls and 
governance processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to 
management and the Audit Committee. Management are responsible for the implementation of agreed 
recommendations and internal audit undertakes follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations 
have been implemented. 

The Audit Committee also advises the Board of Governors on the appointment of the internal and 
financial statements auditors and their remuneration for both audit and non-audit work as well as 
reporting annually to the Board of Governors. 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

Scope of responsibility 

The Board of Governors is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for 
reviewing its effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the 
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute 
assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting 
Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the 
College’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which he 
is personally accountable, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him in the Financial 
Memorandum between the College and the funding bodies.  He is also responsible for reporting to the 
Board of Governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 

The purpose of the system of internal control 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate 
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it therefore can only provide reasonable and 
not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an on-going 
process designed to identify and prioritise the risks of the achievement of College policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  The system of internal control 
has been in place in the College for the year ended 31 July 2019 and up to the date of the approval of 
the financial statements. 

Capacity to handle risk 

The Board of Governors keeps under review the key risks to which the College is exposed, together 
with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those 
risks. The Board of Governors is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, 
evaluating and managing the College’s significant risks that has been in place for the year ending 31 
July 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. The Board of Governors 
regularly reviews the process. 
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The risk and control framework 

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information and 
administrative procedures, including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and 
accountability.  In particular, it includes: 

 comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget which is reviewed and agreed by the 
Board of Governors; 

 regular reviews by the Board of Governors of periodic and annual financial reports which 
indicate financial performance against the forecasts; 

 setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 

 clearly defined capital investment control guidelines; and 

 the adoption of formal project management disciplines where appropriate. 

The College has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the 
ESFA’s Post 16 Audit Code of Practice.  The work of the internal audit service is informed by an 
analysis of the risks to which the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this 
analysis. 

The analysis of risks and the internal audit plans are endorsed by the College’s Board of Governors 
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee.  At least annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) 
provides the Board of Governors with a report on internal audit activity in the College.  The report 
includes the HIA’s independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s system of 
internal control, risk management controls and governance processes. 

Review of effectiveness 

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control.  The Principal’s review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed 
by: 

 the work of the internal auditors; 

 the work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the internal control framework; and 

 comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors in their management letters and 
other reports. 

The Principal has been advised on the implications of the result of his review on the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control by the Audit Committee, which oversees the work of the internal auditors 
and other sources of assurance, and a plan to address any weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place. 

The Executive Team receives reports setting out key performance and risk indicators and considers 
possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, which are embedded 
within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness training.  The Executive Team and the Audit 
Committee also receive regular reports from internal audit and other sources of assurance, which 
include recommendations for improvement. The Audit Committee’s role in this area is confined to a 
high-level review of the arrangements for internal control. The Board of Governors agenda includes a 
regular item for consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon from the Executive Team, 
the Audit Committee and the Business and Resources Committee.  The emphasis is on obtaining the 
relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception.  At its December 2019 meeting 
the Board of Governors carried out the annual assessment of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control for the year ended 31 July 2019 by considering the annual report from the Audit Committee, 
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reviewing documentation from the Executive Team and internal audit and taking account of events 
since 31 July 2019.  

Based on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Board of Governors is of 
the opinion that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk 
management and control, and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficient use 
of resources, the solvency of the institution and the body and the safeguarding of their assets”. 

Going Concern 

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Governors considers that the College has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  For this reason, they continue 
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on 12 December 2019 and signed on 
its behalf by: 

 

 

 

P Burton        M Burgess 

Chair of Governors Principal and Accounting Officer 
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The Board of Governors has considered its responsibilities to notify the Education and Skills Funding 
Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with the terms and conditions 
of funding under the Financial Memorandum in place between the College and the ESFA. As part of 
our consideration we have had due regard to the requirements of the Financial Memorandum. 

We confirm on behalf of the Board of Governors, that after due enquiry and to the best of our 
knowledge, we are able to identify any material irregularity or improper use of funds by the College, or 
material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the College’s grant funding 
agreements and contract with ESFA. 

We confirm that one instance of material irregularity was discovered in the accounting year 2018/19 
and that this was notified to the ESFA. No further action was taken by the ESFA. If any instances  of 
material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance are identified after the date of this 
statement, these will be notified to the ESFA 

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on 12 December 2019 and signed on 
its behalf by: 

 

 

 

 

P Burton        M Burgess 

Chair of Governors Principal and Accounting Officer 
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The members of the Board of Governors of the College are required to present audited financial 
statements for each financial year. 

Within the terms and conditions of the Financial Memorandum agreed between the ESFA and the 
Board of Governors of the College, the Board of Governors, through its Principal, is required to 
prepare financial statements for each financial year in accordance with the 2015 Statement of 
Recommended Practice – Accounting for Further and Higher Education Institutions and with the 
College Accounts Direction for 2018/19 issued by the ESFA and which give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the College and the result for that year. 

In preparing the financial statements the Board of Governors is required to: 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 

 prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume 
that the College will continue in operation. 

The Board of Governors is also required to prepare a Strategic Plan that describes what it is trying to 
do and how it is going about it, including the legal and administrative status of the College. 

The Board of Governors is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the College and to enable it to ensure that 
the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation of incorporation and 
other relevant accounting standards.  It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it 
to safeguard assets of the College and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The Board of Governors is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the College’s website; 
the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and accordingly 
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial 
statements since they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in 
other jurisdictions. 

Members of the Board of Governors are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are 
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to the 
authorities that govern them. In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the ESFA 
are used only in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the ESFA and any other conditions 
that may be prescribed from time to time.  

Members of the Board of Governors must ensure that there are appropriate financial and 
management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds and ensure that they are used 
properly.  In addition, members of the Board of Governors are responsible for securing economical, 
efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and expenditure, so that the benefits 
that should be derived from the application of public funds from the ESFA are not put at risk. 

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on 12 December 2019 and signed on 
its behalf by: 

 

 

P Burton 

Chair of Governors 
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JULY 2019 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Gloucestershire College for the year ended 31 July 2019 
which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including 
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic 
of Ireland, the Charities SORP 2015 and the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the Education 
and Skills Funding Agency. 

 In our opinion the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2019, 
and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and 
expenditure, for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the 
Charities SORP 2015 and the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the Education and 
Skills Funding Agency. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Group and the College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 
us to report to you where: 

 the Board of Governors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is not appropriate; or 

 the Board of Governors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s and the College’s ability to 
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months 
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information 

The Board of Governors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Board of Governors’ annual report, other than the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
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required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where, in our opinion: 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

 certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Responsibilities of Board of Governors  

As explained more fully in the Board of Governors’ responsibilities statement, the Board of Governors 
(who are also the directors of the Group and College for the purposes of company law) are responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, 
and for such internal control as the Board of Governors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors are responsible for assessing the 
Group’s and the College’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 
Governors either intend to liquidate the Group and the College or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the College’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Governors. 
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Governors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the College’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group and the College to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Use of our Report 

This report is made solely to the Board of Governors, as a body, in accordance with the Financial 
Memorandum published by the Chief Executive of Skills Funding and our engagement letter dated 23 
September 2019. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Board of Governors 
Body, as a body, those matters we are required under our engagement letter dated 23 September 
2019 to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Board of Governors, as a 
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

 

 

 
 
Hazlewoods LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditor 
Cheltenham 
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23 September 2019 and further to the 
requirements of the financial memorandum with the Department we have carried out an engagement 
to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest that 
in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received by Gloucestershire College 
during the period 1st August 2018 to  31 July 2019 have not been applied to the purposes identified by 
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the 
Department. In line with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from 
the main funding grants generated through the Individualised Learner Record (ILR) returns, for which 
the Department has other assurance arrangements in place. 

This report is made solely to the Board of Governors of Gloucestershire College and the Department 
in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the Board of Governors of Gloucestershire College and the Department those matters 
we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Board of Governors of Gloucestershire 
College and the Department for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of Gloucestershire College and the reporting accountant 

The Board of Governors of Gloucestershire College is responsible, under the requirements of the 
Further & Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for 
ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by 
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s 
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement 
letter and the requirements of the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. We report to you whether anything 
has come to our attention in carrying out our work, which suggests that in all material respects, 
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2019 have not 
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to 
the authorities which govern them. 

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the 
Department. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in that framework. 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain 
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a 
negative conclusion on regularity. 

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement 
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all 
significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do 
not express a positive opinion. 

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the 
college’s income and expenditure. 

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes: 
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Identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the controls, policies and 
procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of authorities 
including high level financial control areas where a material irregularity is likely to arise. 

We identified areas where in our opinion a material irregularity is more likely to arise and our work 
included an examination, on a test basis, of applicable controls, policies and procedures to obtain 
sufficient evidence to draw our conclusions. 

This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements to the extent evidence from the 
conduct of that audit supports the regularity conclusion. 

Conclusion 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects 
the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2019 has 
not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to 
the authorities which govern them. 

 

 

 
Hazlewoods LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditor 
Cheltenham  
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 Notes Year ended 31 July 
2019 

Year ended 31 July 
2018 

    

  Group College   Group College 

  £’000 £’000     £’000 £’000 

    Restated Restated 

INCOME      

Funding body grants 2 22,126   22,138 21,812   21,812 

Tuition fees and education contracts  3   4,440     4,311   4,814     4,762 

Other grants and contracts 4   3,239     3,239   2,390     2,390 

Other income 5   2,005     2,135   2,014     2,011 

Investment income 6        73         73 

3 

       53         53 

Donations and Endowments 7          -            -          -            - 

Total income  31,883 31,896 31,083 31,028 

EXPENDITURE      

Staff costs 8  22,171   21,087  22,370   21,561 

Fundamental restructuring costs 8       273        273       12        11 

Other operating expenses 9     8,487     9,763     7,674     8,658 

Depreciation 12     2,462     2,480     2,011     2,005 

Interest and other finance costs 10        501        501        609        609 

Total expenditure    33,894   34,104   32,676   32,844 

Deficit before other gains and losses  

   (2,011)    (2,208)    (1,593)    (1,816) 

Profit/(Loss) on disposal of assets         - - - - 

Gain on revaluation of investment properties         100 100        (115)        (115) 

Deficit before tax  (1,911) 

 

(2,108) 

(9,902) 

(1,708) 

 

(1,931) 

(9,902) Taxation 11           -           -           -           - 

Deficit for the year  (1,911) (2,108) (1,708) (1,931) 

Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of pensions 
schemes 

26     (5,737) (5,737)     6,142     6,142 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year        (7,648)       (7,845)        4,434       4,211 

Represented by:      

Restricted comprehensive income              -            -             -            - 

Unrestricted comprehensive income  (7,648)       (7,845)        4,434       4,211 

        (7,648)       (7,845)        4,434       4,211 

      

Deficit for the year attributable to:      

Non-controlling interest            -           -           -           - 

Group   (1,911)  (2,108)  (1,708)  (1,931) 

      

Total Comprehensive Income for the year      

Non-controlling interest               -           -              -           - 

Group        (7,648)       (7,845) 4,434      4,211 
 

 

All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities. The restatement of the results for the year 
ended 31 July 2018 is explained in note 28. 



30 
Gloucestershire College Financial Statements 2018-19 

CONSOLIDATED AND COLLEGE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN 
RESERVES 

 Income and 
expenditure 

account 

Revaluation 
reserve 

Restricted 
reserve 

Non-
controlling 

interest 

Total 

 

 

 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000    £’000 

Group      

Balance at 1st August 2017         21,777   720                178 -  22,675 

Surplus from the income and 

expenditure account 4,434                   -                 - - 4,434 

Other comprehensive income                 -                   -                 - -           - 

Transfers between revaluation and 

income and expenditure reserves 
 

115 
                  

(115) 
- -           - 

Total Comprehensive Deficit for the 

prior year 

 

 

 

4,549              (115) - - 4,434 

Balance at 31st July 2018        26,326 605 178 -  27,109 

      
Surplus from the income and 

expenditure account 
            

(7,648) 
                 -                 - - 

      
 (7,648) 

Other comprehensive income -                  -                 - -           - 

Transfer between revaluation reserves 

and income and expenditure reserves 
(39) 100 (61) -           - 

Total comprehensive income for the 

year (7,687)              100 (61) - (7,648) 

Balance at 31 July 2019 
18,639 705 117 -  19,461 

      

College      

Balance at 1st August 2017         21,560 720                178 -  22,458 

      
(Deficit)/surplus from the income and 

expenditure account 4,211 -                 - - 4,211 

Other comprehensive income                338 -                 - - 338 

Transfers between revaluation and 

income and expenditure reserves 

 

115 (115) - -           - 

Total Comprehensive income for the 

prior year 4,664 (115)                  - - 4,549 

Balance at 31st July 2018        26,224 605 178 -  27,007 
       

(Deficit)/surplus from the income and 

expenditure account 
              

(7,845) 
-                 - - 

         
(7,845) 

Other comprehensive income                346 -                 - -           346 

Transfer between revaluation reserves 

and income and expenditure reserves (39) 100 (61) -           - 

Total comprehensive income for the 

year 
  (7,538) 100 (61) - (7,499) 

Balance at 31 July 2019 

 

 

      18,686 

 

 

705 117 -  19,508 
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 Notes Group College Group College 

 
  2019 2019 2018 2018 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Non-current assets      

Tangible Fixed assets 12   48,903    49,140   48,008    48,211 

Heritage assets 12          38           38          38           38 

Investments 13          -         60          -         60 

Investment Properties 13     7,200      7,200     7,100      7,100 

   56,141 56,438     55,146 55,409    

      Current assets      

Stocks   82 82        352         91 

Assets held for resale  1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 

Trade and other receivables 14      1,648      1,499      2,293      2,343 

Investments 15      2,587      2,587      5,055      5,055 

Cash and cash equivalents 21      4,821      4,686      4,842      4,706 

    10,888    10,604   14,292    13,945 

Less: Creditors – amounts falling due 
within one year 16    (4,155)      (4,121)    (5,097)      (5,115) 

Net current assets       6,733      6,483      9,195      8,830 

            
Total assets less current liabilities    62,874    62,921   64,341    64,239 

Creditors – amounts falling due after more than 

one year 17    (21,812)    (21,812)    (22,779)    (22,779) 

Provisions       

Pension liability 26 (21,599) (21,599) (14,450) (14,450) 

Defined benefit obligations 20 (2) (2) (3) (3) 

Total net assets    19,461    19,508   27,109    27,007 

      Restricted reserves          117         117         178         178 

      
Unrestricted Reserves      

Income and expenditure account      18,639     18,686    26,326     26,224 

Revaluation reserve 

 

         705          705         605          605 

Total unrestricted reserves     19,344     19,391    26,931     26,829 

Total reserves    19,461     19,508   27,109     27,007 

The financial statements on pages 29 to 57 were approved by the Board of Governors on 12 December 
2019 and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

P Burton        M Burgess 

Chair of Governors Principal and Accounting Officer 
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 Notes 2019 2018 

  £’000 £’000 

Cash flow from operating activities    

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year          (7,648) 

 

        4,434 

    
Adjustment for non-cash items    

Depreciation 12       2,462       2,011 

(Increase)/Decrease in stocks   270  311 

(Increase)/Decrease in debtors  645         (370) 

Increase/(Decrease) in creditors due within one year       (942) 

 

     (1,229) 

 Increase/(Decrease) in creditors due after one year          (135) 

 

920 

(Decrease) in provisions  (1) (1) 

Pensions costs less contributions payable        7,149 (4,329) 

Deferred capital grants released 18 (853) (719) 

    
Adjustment for investing or financing activities    

Investment income 6 (73) (53) 

Interest payable 10          501          609 

Profit on sale of assets  - - 

(Loss)/Gain on revaluation of investment properties  (100) 115 

Net cash flow from operating activities  1,275 1,699 

    

Cash flows from investing activities    

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets       -      - 

Deferred capital grants received 18           21           5,422 

Investment income 6           73           53 

Withdrawal of deposits 15      2,468      (31) 

Payments made to acquire fixed assets 12     (3,357)     (9,740) 

        (795)       (4,296) 

Cash flows from financing activities    

Interest paid 10         (501)         (609) 

    

Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the 
year 

 (21)      (3,206) 

    

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 21 4,842 8,048 

    

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 21 4,821 4,842 
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1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES 

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items that are 
considered material in relation to the financial statements. 

Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended 
Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015 (the 2015 FE HE SORP), the College 
Accounts Direction for 2018 to 2019 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 – “The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102). The 
College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of 
FRS 102. 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's 
accounting policies. 

Basis of accounting 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention modified by the 
revaluation of certain fixed assets and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards. 

Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the College and its four subsidiary undertakings, Betaris 
Training Limited, Gloucestershire Facilities Management Limited, New College Developments Limited 
and Gloucestershire Professional Services Limited. Intra-group sales and profits are eliminated fully on 
consolidation. In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS102), the activities of the student 
union have not been consolidated because the College does not control those activities.  All financial 
statements are made up to 31 July 2019. 

Going concern  

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and 
performance are set out in the Report of the Governing Body. The financial position of the College, its 
cash flow, liquidity and borrowings are described in the Financial Statements and accompanying notes. 

The College currently has £1,891,633 (2018: £2,057,886) of loans outstanding with bankers on terms 
negotiated in 2009. 

The College’s forecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within this existing 
facility and covenants for the foreseeable future. 

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going 
concern basis in the preparation of its Financial Statements. 

Recognition of income 

Funding body recurrent grants are recognised in line with best estimates for the period of what is 
receivable and depends on the particular income stream involved. Any under or over-achievement 
against the adult skills budget is adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant recognised in 
the income and expenditure account. The final grant income is normally determined with the conclusion 
of the year-end reconciliation process with the funding body at the end of November following the year-
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end. 16-18 learner responsive funding is not normally subject to a reconciliation and is therefore not 
subject to any contractual adjustments. 

The recurrent grant from the Higher Education Funding Council for England represents the funding 
allocations attributable to the current financial year and is credited directly to the income and expenditure 
account.  

Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the 
income and performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance 
related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and 
released to income as the conditions are met. 

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the 
expected useful life of the asset, under the accrual method as permitted by FRS 102. Other capital 
grants are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance 
related conditions being met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met 
is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released to income as 
conditions are met 

Income from tuition fees is recognised in the period for which it is receivable and includes all fees payable 
by students or their sponsors. 

All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in 
which it is earned on a receivable basis. 

Accounting for post-employment benefits 

Retirement benefits to employees of the College are provided by the Teachers Superannuation Scheme 
(TSS) and the Gloucestershire County Council Superannuation Fund (GCCSF). These are defined 
benefit schemes, which are externally funded and contracted out of the State Earnings Related Pension 
Scheme (SERPS). 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of 
pensions over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a 
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are 
determined by qualified actuaries based on valuations using a prospective benefit method. The TPS is 
a multi-employer scheme and the College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and 
liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined 
contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods 
during which services are rendered by employees. 

The assets of the GCCSF are measured using closing market values. GCCSF liabilities are measured 
using the projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate 
bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability. The increase in present value of the liabilities of the 
scheme expected to arise from employee service in the period is charged to the operating surplus. The 
expected return on the scheme’s assets and the increase during the period in the present value of the 
scheme’s liabilities, arising from the passage of time, are included in pension finance costs. Actuarial 
gains and losses are recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.   

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses 

Short-term Employment benefits 

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are 
recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused 
benefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of 
the unused entitlement. 
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Enhanced Pensions 

The actual cost of the enhanced ongoing pension to a former member of staff is paid by the College 
annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former 
member of staff is charged in full to the College’s income and expenditure account in the year that the 
member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge is made to provisions in the balance sheet. 

Non-current Assets - Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Investment properties are stated at valuation.  

Land and buildings: 

Freehold buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives as follows: 

 Buildings – 50 years 

 Roofs and integral plant – 20 years 

 Refurbishments – 5 to 10 years 

Freehold land is not depreciated.  

Freehold buildings and integral plant are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the 
College of between 20 and 50 years. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to 
buildings over the period of their useful economic life of between 5 and 10 years. In 2015/16 the College 
adopted FRS 102 component accounting for its properties. This has accelerated depreciation that has 
been partially matched by deferred capital grants.  

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and 
depreciated as above. The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, 
and are released to the income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the 
related asset on a systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is 
allocated between creditors due within one year and those due after more than one year. 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. 

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land 
and buildings and not to adopt a policy of revaluations of these properties in the future. 

Assets under construction:  

Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and 
other direct costs, incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.  

Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets: 

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial purchase it is charged to 
income in the period it is incurred, unless it increases the future benefits to the College, in which case it 
is capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis. 
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Equipment: 

Equipment costing less than £750 per individual item is recognised as expenditure in the period of 
acquisition, unless purchased as a suite of items such as computers. All other equipment is capitalised 
at cost.  

Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful economic life as 
follows: 

 technical equipment   5 years  

 motor vehicles    4 years 

 computer equipment       4 years  

 furniture, fixtures and fittings  5 years 

Heritage Assets - Paintings 

Paintings are reported on the balance sheet at either cost or market value. Consideration is given to an 
external valuer periodically reviewing individual items with any surplus or deficit being reported in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Paintings are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high 
residual value; hence the Board of Governors do not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. 

Acquisitions are made by purchase or donation. Purchases are initially recorded at cost and donations 
are recorded at current value ascertained by the Board of Governors with reference, where possible, to 
commercial markets. 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred. 

Leased assets 

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any lease 
premiums or incentives relating to leases signed after 1 August 2014 are spread over the minimum lease 
term.  

Leasing agreements that transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of 
an asset are treated as finance leases.  

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset (or, if lower, 
the present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability 
to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Assets held under finance 
leases are included in tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the 
same way as owned assets. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the 
outstanding liability. The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the 
capital element outstanding. 

Investments 

Investment Properties: 

The College has designated three properties to be held as investment properties.  These properties are 
held in the balance sheet at the latest formal valuation which took place in July 2019. As described in 
note 13, these properties are held as non-current investments. A fourth property is marketed for sale 
and is held as a current asset. 
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Investments in subsidiaries: 

Shares held in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost.  

Investments in associates: 

Shares in associates are recognised initially in the consolidated Balance Sheet at the transaction price 
and will be subsequently adjusted to reflect the group's share of total comprehensive income and equity 
of the associate, less any impairment.  

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition, although treated 
as goodwill, is presented as part of the investment in the associate.  Amortisation is charged so as to 
allocate the cost of goodwill over its estimated useful life, using the straight-line method. Losses in 
excess of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate are recorded as a provision only when 
the College has incurred legal or constructive obligations or has made payments on behalf of the 
associate. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value, being selling price less costs to 
complete and sell. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective items. 
The consolidated accounts include Nil (2017/18: £261k) for stocks of houses purchased by 
Gloucestershire Facilities Management Limited for renovation by College students. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on 
demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. 

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it 
has maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Financial liabilities and equity 

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s 
contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form. 

All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the College are classified as basic financial 
instruments in accordance with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction 
price less any transaction costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost; however the College has calculated that the difference 
between the historical cost and amortised cost basis is not material and so these financial instruments 
are stated on the balance sheet at historical cost. Loans and investments that are payable or receivable 
within one year are not discounted. 

Foreign currency translation 

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the 
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated 
at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial period with all resulting exchange differences 
being taken to income in the period in which they arise. 

Taxation 

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and 
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, 
the College is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within 
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categories covered by sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation 
of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to 
charitable purposes.  

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover around 2.5% 
of the VAT charged on its inputs.  Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs 
and added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible 
fixed assets by nature.  

The College’s subsidiary companies are subject to corporation tax and VAT in the same way as any 
commercial organisation. 

Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the 
obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is 
recognised as a finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income in the period it arises. 

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the College. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision 
would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the 
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. 

Reserves 

Restricted funds – This relates to unspent money from restricted grants. The donor has specified what 
the money must be spent on and the trustees normally do not have the power to spend the money on 
anything else. 

The College has £116,534 (2018: £177,703) in Restricted Reserves. These funds have been specifically 
earmarked to be spent on supporting learners with costs of learning. 

Unrestricted funds – This is money that can be spent on anything which furthers the objectives of the 
College. 

Agency arrangements 

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of Discretionary Support Funds. Related 

payments received from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the 
Income and Expenditure Account and are shown separately in note 28, except for the 5% of the grant 
received which is available to the College to cover administration costs relating to the grant. 

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements: 

Determine whether leases entered into by the College as either a lessor or a lessee are operating or 
finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease-by-lease basis. 

Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the group’s tangible assets, including goodwill. 
Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected 
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future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, 
the viability and expected future performance of that unit. 

Tangible fixed assets: 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives taking 
into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are 
assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors 
such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value 
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and 
projected disposal values. 

Local Government Pension Scheme: 

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a 
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The 
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any 
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will affect the carrying amount of the 
pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial 
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 
31 July 2019. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full 
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. 

2. FUNDING BODY GRANTS 

 Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 Group College Group College 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

   Restated Restated 

Recurrent grants     

Education and Skills Funding Agency - Adult  3,572 3,572 3.732 3,732 

Education and Skills Funding Agency - 16-18 13,030 13,030 13,390 13,390 

Education and Skills Funding Agency – 
Apprentices 4,407 4,407 3,576 3,576 

Higher Education Funding Council 253 253 370 370 

Specific grants     

Education and Skills Funding Agency – AGE 11 11 25 25 

Deferred Capital Grants Released 853 865 719 719 

     
Total 22,126 22,138 21,812 21,812 

     
     

 

 

 

 



40 
Gloucestershire College Financial Statements 2018-19 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3. TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS 

 Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 Group College Group College 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
Adult education fees 991 979 1,047 995 

Apprenticeship fees and contracts 369 369 392 392 

Fees for FE loan supported courses 1,064 947 809 809 

Fees for HE loan supported courses 1,269 1,269 1,702 1,702 

International students fees 443 443 526 526 

Total tuition fees 4,136 4,007 4,476 4,424 

Education contracts 304 304 338 338 

     
Total 4,440 4,311 4,814 4,762 

 

4. OTHER GRANTS AND CONTRACTS 

 Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 Group College Group College 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
European commission 991 991 489 489 

High needs grants from councils 2,248 2,248 1,901 1,901 

     
Total 3,239 3,239 2,390 2,390 

 

 

    
     

 

5. OTHER INCOME 

 Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 Group College Group College 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
Catering and residences 1,608 1,608 1,406 1,406 

Other income generating activities 90 90 67 67 

Other grant income 55 55 60 60 

Non-government capital grants - - - - 

Miscellaneous income 252 382 481 478 

     
Total 2,005 2,135 2,014 2,011 
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6. INVESTMENT INCOME 

 
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 Group College Group College 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
Bank interest receivable 73 73 53 53 

     
 

7. DONATIONS AND ENDOWMENTS 

Neither the Group nor the College received any donations or endowments in the current or preceding 
year. 

8. STAFF COSTS 

The average number of persons (including key management personnel) employed during the year, 
described as full-time equivalents, was: 

 Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July 
 

 

 Group College Group College 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 No. No. No. No. 

    

 

 Teaching staff 485 440 511 487 

Non-teaching staff 222 133 225 170 

     
 707 573 736 690 

     
Staff costs for the above persons     

 Group College Group College 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

      £’000 £’000      £’000     £’000 

    Restated 

     Wages and salaries     15,806      12,447     15,035      13,945 

Social security costs      1,285 
1,15 

   2,492 

 (468) 

      835   
1,151 

      1,037      1,331 
1,15 

   2,492 

 (468) 

      835   
1,151 

      1,167 

Other pension costs  2,202            2,091 2,375             2,305 

Movement in holiday pay accrual         6 6          (75)          (75) 

FRS102 adjustments 1,615 1,615 1,909 1,909 

     
Payroll sub total    20,914    17,196    20,575    19,766 

Contracted out staffing services 1,257            3,891 1,795             2,310 

     
    22,171    21,087    22,370     21,561 

Fundamental restructuring cost: Non-contractual 

 

 

 

 

 

 

273 273 12 11 

     
Total Staff costs    22,444    21,360    22,382    21,572 
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Key management personnel 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the College Leadership Team, which 
comprises the Principal and Executive Team members. Staff costs include any compensation paid to 
key management personnel for loss of office. 

Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff 

 Year ended 31 
July 2019 

Year ended 31 
July 2018 

 No. No. 

The number of key management personnel including the 
Accounting Officer was: 

 

 

 

5 6 

The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual emoluments, excluding 
pension contributions and employer’s national insurance but including benefits in kind, in the following 
ranges was: 

 Key management 
personnel 

Other staff 

 Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 No. No. No. No. 

     
£50,001 to £55,000 p.a. - 1 2 2 

£55,001 to £60,000 p.a. - - 1 2 

£60,001 to £65,000 p.a. - 1 1 1 

£65,001 to £70,000 p.a. - - 2 - 

£70,001 to £75,000 p.a. 1 - - - 

£75,001 to £80,000 p.a. - 1 - - 

£85,001 to £90,000 p.a. 

 

2 2 - - 

£90,001 to £95,000 p.a. 1 - - - 

£145,001 to £150,000 p.a. 

 

 

- 1 - - 

£150,001 to £155,000 p.a. 

 

 

1 - - - 

     
 5 6 6 5 

     

Key management personnel compensation is made up as follows: 

 Year ended 31 
July 2019 

Year ended 31 
July 2018 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Salaries 482 505 

Benefits in kind 7 7 

 489 512 

Pension contributions 88 92 

   
Total Key management personnel compensation 577 604 
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There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor any salary 
sacrifice arrangements in place. 

The above compensation includes amounts payable to the Accounting Officer (who is also the highest 
paid member of staff) of: 

 Year ended 31 
July 2019 

Year ended 31 
July 2018 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Salaries 148 144 

Benefits in kind 2 2 

 150 146 

Pension contributions 28 28 

   
Total 178 174 

The Board of Governors adopted the College’s Senior Post Holder Remuneration Code in April 2019 
and assesses remuneration in line with its principles. 

The remuneration package of the Principal/Chief Executive is subject to annual review by the Senior 
Staff Employment Committee of the governing body in accordance with the College’s Senior Post Holder 
Remuneration and Appraisal Policy. 

The Principal/Chief Executive reports to the Chair of the Board of Governors, who, together with the 
Chair of the Senior Staff Employment Committee, undertakes an annual review of the Principal/Chief 
Executive’s performance against the College’s overall objectives using both qualitative and quantitative 
measures of performance. 

Relationship of Principal/Chief Executive pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple: 

Principal’s basic salary as a multiple of the median salary of all College staff  5.8 

Principal’s total remuneration as a multiple of the median salary of all College staff 6.2 

The first multiples use the median of College staff gross salary, excluding national insurance and 
pension contributions. The second multiple includes pension contributions.  Contract and agency 
workers are excluded from the calculation. 

No compensation for loss of office was paid to former key management personnel in the current or 
previous year.  

The members of the Board of Governors other than the Accounting Officer and the staff members did 
not receive any payment from the institution other than the reimbursement of travel and subsistence 
expenses incurred in the course of their duties. 
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9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

 Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 Group College Group College 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

   Restated Restated 

      
Teaching costs 3,773 4,438 2,570 3,200 

Non-teaching costs 2,757 2,955 3,345 3,244 

Premises costs 1,957 2,370 1,759 2,214 

     
Total 8,487 9,763 7,674 8,658 

     
Other operating expenses include: 2019  2018  

 £’000  £’000  

 Auditors’ remuneration:     

 Financial statements audit*  33   33  

 Internal audit**  34    37   

 Other services provided by the financial 
statements auditor 

1  -  

 Other services provided by the internal auditors -  2  

 Hire of assets under operating leases 211  152  

     
 *   includes £22,500 in respect of the College (2017/18 £24,000) 

 **  includes £33,977 in respect of the College (2017/18 £37,466) 

 

 

 
 

10. INTEREST AND OTHER FINANCE COSTS – GROUP AND COLLEGE 

 2019 2018 

 £’000 £’000 

   
On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans: 83 85 

Pension finance costs (note 26) 418 524 

   
Total 501 609 

   
 

11. TAXATION – GROUP ONLY 

 2019 2018 

 £’000 £’000 

   
United Kingdom corporation tax at 19 per cent - - 

Provision for deferred corporation tax in the accounts of the 

subsidiary companies 
- - 

   
Total - - 
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Any profits from subsidiaries are transferred to the College under gift aid provisions and therefore no 
corporation tax is expected to be payable. 

12. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

GROUP 
Land and 

buildings - 
Freehold 

Heritage 
Asset 

Equipment 

Assets in 
the course 

of 
construction 

Total 

 

   £’000 £’000        £’000        £’000      £’000 

Cost or valuation      

At 1 August 2018  53,723 38      10,929 11,270   75,960 

Transferred  13,571 - 746  (14,317)            - 

Additions        - -          276       3,081     3,357 

Disposals  - -  (578)              -  (578) 

      
At 31 July 2019  67,294 38    11,373 34      78,739 

      
Depreciation      

At 1 August 2018  17,724 -     10,190 -    27,914 

Charge for the year  1,914 - 548             -    2,462 

Elimination in respect of disposals     - -     (578)             -      (578) 

      
At 31 July 2019 19,638 -      10,156              - 29,794      

      
Net book value at 31 July 2019  47,656 38       1,213 34  48,941 

      
Net book value at 31 July 2018  35,999 38          739 11,270  48,046 
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COLLEGE ONLY 
Land and 

buildings - 
Freehold 

Heritage 
Asset 

Equipment 

Assets in 
the course 

of 
construction 

Total 

 

   £’000       £’000        £’000        £’000       
£’000 

       £’000 

Cost or valuation      

At 1 August 2018 53,723 38    10,904      11,482 76,147 

Transferred    13,848              - 746 (14,594)      
(14,594)      

- 

              - 

Additions        -              -         263 3,146        3,409 

Disposals -              -  (578)              -                
- 

(578) 

      
At 31 July 2019 67,571 38     11,335      34            78,978 

      

Depreciation      

At 1 August 2018  17,724 -      10,174 - 27,898 

Charge for the year  1,914 -         566 -       2,480 

Elimination in respect of disposals     - -  (578) - (578) 

      
At 31 July 2019 19,638 -      10,162 - 29,800 

      
Net book value at 31 July 2019 47,933 38        1,173 -     49,178 

      
Net book value at 31 July 2018 35,999 38         730 11,482     48,249 

      
      

 

Land and buildings including investment properties with a net book value of £56,883,000 (2017/18 
£44,849,000) have been partly financed by exchequer funds, through for example the receipt of capital 
grants. Should these assets be sold, the College may be liable under the terms of the Financial 
Memorandum with the ESFA/Education Funding Agency, to surrender the proceeds. 

As at 31 July 2019 the College’s subsidiary company, Betaris Training Limited, had equipment with a 
net book value of £5,011 (2017/18: £2,758). Gloucestershire Facilities Management Limited held 
equipment with a net book value of £10,844 (2017/18: £7,214). There were no fixed assets held by New 
College Developments Limited nor Gloucestershire Professional Services Limited. The College has 
raised a first legal charge on its Cheltenham campus in favour of the Gloucestershire Pension Fund as 
security against the LGPS pension deficit. 

Heritage Assets 

In 2009, the College commissioned a painting by PJ Crook, a local artist, who has worked with and 
supported students at the College. PJ Crook was appointed Member of the Order of the British Empire 
(MBE) in the 2011 Birthday Honours for her services to art. The painting is on display at the College’s 
Gloucester campus. It is included in the financial statements at a value of £37,646. 

Financial Summary of Heritage Asset Transactions 

 2019 2018 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Paintings 38 38 

   
 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Member_of_the_Order_of_the_British_Empire
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/2011_Birthday_Honours
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13. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

 College College 

 2019 2018 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Investments in subsidiary companies 60 60 

Investment Properties 7,200 7,100 

   
Total 7,260 7,160 

   
 

Investment Properties 

 Group 

 

Group 

 

College 

 

College 

  2019 2018 2019 2018 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
125 Business Park 2,925 

 

2,550 2,925 

 

2,550 

Alexandra Warehouse 1,575 1,450 1,575 1,450 

Launchpad 2,700 3,100 2,700 3,100 

     

 7,200 7,100 7,200 7,100 

     
 

The College owns three properties in Gloucestershire that are substantially let to third parties. In the 
2018/19 financial year these properties were professionally valued at £7.2 million, as the three 
investment properties are to have a legal charge in favour of Barclays Bank plc as surety against an 
existing loan and the new drawdown loan facility of £2.2 million recently negotiated with the bank. 

The property at Devon Avenue is marketed for sale and was transferred from Investment Properties to 
Assets for Re-sale in Current Assets in the accounts.  

Investments in Subsidiary Companies 

The College owns 100% of the issued ordinary £1 shares of Betaris Training Limited a company 
incorporated in England and Wales. The principal business activity of the subsidiary company is the 
delivery of employer-led qualifications for employers in subject areas that the College does not normally 
cover. The cost of the investment in this company is £50,000. 

The College owns 100% of the issued ordinary £1 shares of Gloucestershire Facilities Management 
Limited a company incorporated in England and Wales. The principal business activity of the subsidiary 
company is the management of the College’s estate and as a vehicle for commercial operations. The 
cost of the investment in this company is £10,000.  

The College owns 100% of the issued ordinary £1 shares of New College Developments Limited a 
company incorporated in England and Wales. The principal business activity of the subsidiary company 
is the management of the College’s large-scale building contracts. In 2018/19 the company managed 
the College’s the build of the new campus at the Royal Forest of Dean. The cost of the investment in 
this company is £100.  

The College owns 100% of the issued ordinary £1 shares of Gloucestershire Professional Services 
Limited a company incorporated in England and Wales. The company was set up in June 2017 and the 
principal business activity of this subsidiary company is for the supply of support services to the College. 
The cost of the investment in this company is £100.  
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In 2017/18 the College wrote off the balance of cost for its 40% of the issued ordinary £1 shares of the 
College Brasserie Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales. The College owns 100% of 
the ordinary £1 shares of this company, which is in the process of being wound up. 

14. DEBTORS 

 Group College Group College 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Amounts falling due within one year:   Restated Restated 

Trade receivables 

 

303 181 254 125 

Other debtors 72 65 635 223 

Amounts owed by group undertakings          - 12          - 629 

Prepayments and accrued income 

 

 

841 809 1,192 1,154 

Amounts owed by the ESFA 432 432 212 212 

     
Total 1,648 1,499 2,293 2,343 

     
 

15. CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

 Group College Group College 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
Short term deposits 2,587 2,587 5,055 5,055 

     

Deposits are held with the College’s bank operating in the London market and licensed by the Financial 
Conduct Authority with more than three months’ maturity at the balance sheet date.  The interest rates 
for these deposits are fixed for the duration of the deposit at time of placement. 

16. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 

 Group College Group College 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
Bank loans and overdrafts 169 169 166 166 

Trade payables 191   163 136   136 

Amounts owed to group undertakings - 592 - 143 

Other taxation and social security 637 564 644 585 

Accruals and deferred income 1,982 1,466 2,918 2,867 

Holiday pay accrual 345 336 345 330 

Deferred income -  government capital grants 831 831 878 878 

Amounts owed to the ESFA - - 10 10 

     
Total 4,155 4,121 5,097 5,115 
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The deferred income government capital grants relate to grants to be released against the expected 12 
months’ depreciation for 2018/19 on capital-funded assets. See note 18. 

17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER ONE YEAR 

 Group College Group College 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     
Bank loans 1,722 1,722 1,892 1,892 

Deferred income - government capital grants 20,090 20,090 20,887 20,887 

     
Total 21,812 21,812 22,779 22,779 

The deferred capital grants relate to grants remaining to be released against depreciation on capital 
funded assets for the remainder of their useful lives. See note 18. 

18. DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS 

 College 

 ESFA 
 
 

Other 
 
 

Total 
 
 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

At 1 August 2018 (Restated)    

Land and buildings 21,275 371 21,646 

Equipment 40 79 119 

    

 21,315 450 21,765 

    
Cash received/receivable    

Land and buildings - - - 

Equipment - 21 21 

    
 - 21 21 

    
Released to income and expenditure account    

Land and buildings 786 - 786 

Equipment 27 52 79 

    

 813 52 865 

    
At 31 July 2019    

Land and buildings 20,489 371 20,860 

Equipment 13 48 61 

    
 20,502 419 20,921 

    
Amounts falling due within one year   831 

Amounts falling due after one year   20,090 

   20,921 
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19. MATURITY OF DEBT 

Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows: 

 Group College Group College 

 2019 2019 2018 2018 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

In one year or less 169 169 166 166 

Between one and two years 173 173 170 170 

Between two and five years 531 531 531 531 

In five years or more 1,018 1,018 1,191 1,191 

Total 1,891 1,891 2,058 2,058 
 

20. PROVISIONS 

 Group College 

Enhanced pensions £’000 £’000 

   
At 1 August 2018                 3                 3 

Expenditure in the period   (1)   (1) 

Additions in period                 -                 - 

   
At 31 July 2019                 2                 2 

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of one member staff who is no longer employed by 
the College. 

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 At 1 Aug 
2018 

 Cash flows  At 31 Jul  
2019 

  £’000 £’000 

     
Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 

4,842 (21) 4,821 

    
Total 4,842 (21) 4,821 

 

22. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 

The capital commitment for both years reflect the contract for the building of the new campus in the 
Forest of Dean. 

 Group and College 

 2019 2018 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Commitments contracted for at 31 July 91 2,636 

              

 

 

 

 

  
Commitments authorised but not contracted for at 31 July -          - 
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23. LEASE OBLIGATIONS – GROUP AND COLLEGE 

At 31 July the Group and College had minimum lease payments  under non-cancellable operating leases 
as follows: 

 2019 2018 

 £’000 £’000 

Future minimum lease payments due   

   
Land and buildings   

Not later than one year 75 42 

Later than one year and not later than five years 191 - 

Later than five years 239 - 

   
 505 42 

   
Other   

Not later than one year 136 39 

Later than one year and not later than five years 100 142 

Later than five years             -             - 

   
 236 181 

   
   

 

24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Pensions 

Decisions by the European Court of Justice may increase the liability for pension provisions of UK 
employers, including institutions such as Gloucestershire College.  Whilst a UK Industrial tribunal case 
has placed time limits on claims, thus suggesting that any liability will be limited, ultimately appeals would 
be referred back to the European Court of Justice.  In view of this continuing uncertainty, no provision 
has been made in these financial statements in relation to this matter. 

25. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

There are no events after the reporting period. 
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26. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 

The College’s employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachers’ Pension 
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Gloucestershire Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Gloucestershire 
County Council. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit plans. 

Total pension cost for the year  2019  2018 

  £’000  £’000 

     
Teachers’ Pension Scheme: contributions paid  887  944 

Local Government Pension Scheme:     

 Contributions paid 1,192  1,365  

 FRS 102 (28)  charge 1,615  1,909  

     
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income 
 2,807  3,274 

     

Total Pension Cost for Year within staff 

costs 
 3,694  4,218 

     

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The 
latest actuarial valuations of the TSS and the GCCPF were 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2016 
respectively. There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or end of the 
financial year. 

Teachers Superannuation Scheme (TSS) 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined-benefit scheme, governed by 
the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010, and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2014.  These regulations apply to teachers in schools and other educational 
establishments, including academies, in England and Wales that are maintained by local authorities.  In 
addition, teachers in many independent and voluntary-aided schools and teachers and lecturers in some 
establishments of further and higher education may be eligible for membership.  Membership is 
automatic for full-time teachers and lecturers and for teachers and lecturers in part-time employment 
following appointment or a change of contract.  Teachers and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS. 

The Teachers’ Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account 

Although members may be employed by various bodies, their retirement and other pension benefits are 
set out in regulations made under the Superannuation Act 1972 and are paid by public funds provided 
by Parliament.  The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ’pay as you go‘ basis – 
these contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under 
arrangements governed by the above Act. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public 
funds provided by Parliament. 

The Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 require an annual account, the Teachers' Pension Budgeting 
and Valuation Account, to be kept of receipts and expenditure (including the cost of pension 
increases).  From 1 April 2001, the Account has been credited with a real rate of return, which is 
equivalent to assuming that the balance in the Account is invested in notional investments that produce 
that real rate of return. 
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Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was 
published by the Department for Education (the Department in April 2019.  The valuation reported total 
scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service 
to the effective date of £218 billion, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the 
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £198 billion giving a notional past service deficit of 
£22 billion. 

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable pay 
from September 2019 onwards (compared to 16.48% during 2018/19. DfE has agreed to pay a teacher 
pension employer contribution grant to cover the additional costs during the 2019-20 academic year. 

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers’ Pension 
Scheme website at the following location: 

https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx 

Scheme Changes 

Following the Hutton report in March 2011 and the subsequent consultations with trade unions and other 
representative bodies on reform of the TPS, the Department published a Proposed Final Agreement, 
setting out the design for a reformed TPS to be implemented from 1 April 2015. 

The key provisions of the reformed scheme include a pension based on career average earnings; an 
accrual rate of 1/57th; and a Normal Pension Age equal to State Pension Age, but with options to enable 
members to retire earlier or later than their Normal Pension Age. Importantly, pension benefits built up 
before 1 April 2015 will be fully protected. 

In addition, the Proposed Final Agreement includes a Government commitment that those within 10 
years of Normal Pension Age on 1 April 2012 will see no change to the age at which they can retire, and 
no decrease in the amount of pension they receive when they retire. There will also be further transitional 
protection, tapered over a three and a half year period, for people who would fall up to three and a half 
years outside of the 10 year protection.  

Regulations giving effect to a reformed Teachers’ Pension Scheme came into force on 1 April 2014 and 
the reformed scheme commenced on 1 April 2015. The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted 
to £887,000 (2018: £944,000). 

FRS 102 (28) 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The College 
is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the College 
has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme 
as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out above the information available on the 
plan and the implications for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution rates. 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by 
Gloucestershire County Council. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 July 2019 were 
£1,573,000, of which employer’s contributions totalled £1,192,000 and employees’ contributions totalled 
£381,000 The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.2% for employers and range from 5.5% 
to 11.4% for employees, depending on salary. 

 

 

https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx
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Principal Actuarial Assumptions 

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 updated 
to 31 July 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. 

 At 31 July 2019 At 31 July 2018 

Rate of increase in salaries 2.7% 2.7% 

Future pensions increases 2.4% 2.4% 

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.1% 2.8% 

Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.4% 2.4% 

Commutation of pensions to lump sums 35% 35% 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.  
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

 At 31 July 2019 At 31 July 2018 

 years years 

Retiring today   

Males 21.5 22.4 

Females 23.7 24.6 

Retiring in 20 years   

Males 22.3 24.0 

Females 25.0 26.4 

The College’s share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date and the expected rates of return 
were: 

 

Split of 
Investments 

at 31 July 
2019 

Fair Value at 
31 July 2019 

£’000 

Split of 
Investments 

at 31 July 
2018 

Fair Value at 
31 July 2018 

£’000 

Equity instruments 67% 41,277 69% 39,282 

Bonds 23% 14,170 21% 11,956 

Property 8% 4,929 8% 4,554 

Cash 2% 1,232 2% 1,139 

     
Total fair value of plan assets  61,608  56,931 

     
Weighted average expected long term rate of 
return 

  5.8%  3.4%  

     
Actual return on plan assets  2,378  3,018 

     

The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is as follows: 

   2019        2018 

      £’000       £’000 

Fair value of plan assets     61,608     56,931 

Present value of plan liabilities  (83,207)  (71,381) 

Net pensions liability  (21,599) (14,450) 
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Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as follows: 

        2019         2018 

 £’000 £’000 

Amounts included in staff costs   

Current service cost   (2,641)  (3,269) 

Losses on curtailments               (166)               (5) 

Total  (2,807) (3,274) 

   
Amounts included in investment costs 

 

  

Net interest paid (418) (524) 

 (418) (524) 

   

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income 

  

Return on pension plan assets 2,378 3,018 

Experience losses arising on defined benefit obligations - - 

Changes in demographic assumptions 4,362 - 

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of 
plan liabilities 

 (12,477) 3,124 

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income 

       (5,737)        6,142 

   
Movement in net defined benefit liability during year   

        2019         2018 

      £’000      £’000 

Net defined benefit liability in scheme at 1 August  (14,450) (18,779) 

Movement in year:   

 Current service cost (2,641) (3,269) 

 Employer contributions      1,813      1,985 

 Losses on curtailments              (166)              (5) 

 Net interest on the defined liability (418) (524) 

 Actuarial gain or loss (5,737) 6,142 

Net defined benefit liability at 31 July  (21,599) (14,450) 
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Asset and Liability Reconciliation        2019         2018 

       £’000     £’000 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations  

   
Defined benefit obligations at start of period     71,381     70,300 

Current service cost       2,641       3,269 

Interest cost       2,021       1,927 

Contributions by Scheme participants          381          447 

Experience gains and losses on defined benefit obligations - - 

Changes in financial assumptions       12,477       (3,124) 

Changes in demographic assumptions (4,362)         - 

Estimated benefits paid                                                                                                      (1,498)      (1,443) 

Past Service cost 166              5 

Defined benefit obligations at end of period 83,207     71,381 

   
Changes in fair value of plan assets   

   
Fair value of plan assets at start of period  56,931  51,521 

Interest on plan assets    1,603    1,403 

Return on plan assets  2,378    3,018   

Employer contributions    1,813    1,985 

Contributions by Scheme participants        381        447 

Estimated benefits paid     (1,498)     (1,443) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of period   61,608   56,931 

   
 

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Owing to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the Board of Governors being 
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place 
with organisations in which a member of the Board of Governors may have an interest. All transactions 
involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the College’s 
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures. 

The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year was £954:4 governors (2018: 
£1,817; 10 governors). This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of pocket 
expenses incurred in attending Governor meetings and charity events in their official capacity. 

No Governor has received any remuneration or waived payments from the College or its subsidiaries 
during the year (2018: None). 

The transactions with Governors for 2018/19 were as follows: 
 

Related Party Activity Value 

Anne Williams Partner at Bruton Knowles, Estate Agents 
that marketed a lease for one property. Ms Williams was 
not the lead partner for these services. 

£108.00 

Polly Schreuder – Governor Partner at Ash and Co, who are the 
managing agents for two of the College’s 
Investment Properties. Ms Schreuder is not  
the lead partner for the contracted services. 

£19,189.32 
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28. AMOUNTS DISBURSED AS AGENT AND RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR 

   

Learner Support Funds 2019  

 

2018  

  £’000 £’000 

  Re-stated 

Funding body grants – Adult Discretionary support         350         286  

Funding body grants – Advanced Learner Loan Bursaries         202          211  

Funding body grants – 16-19 Discretionary Bursaries         575         606 

Other Funding body grants             252             220 

      1,092       1,103  

Disbursed to students   (1,044)   (1,048) 

Disbursed to employers (252) (220) 

Administration costs  (48)  (55) 

   
Balance unspent as at 31 July, included in net debtors             35              -  

   

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the College only acts 
as a paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded 
from the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

The £220,000 shown above as amounts disbursed as agent to employers from funding body grants was 
in the financial year ending 31 July 2018 incorrectly disclosed as income and expenditure of the College.  
The 2018 comparatives in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income have been amended 
accordingly. 

 


